
NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS 

School Committee 
AMENDED 

Public Hearing – FY26 Budget 
and 

Business Meeting 

Monday, April 7, 2025 
6:30PM 

SC Packet Checklist: 
SC Budget Hearing & Business Meeting Agenda April 7, 2025   
SC Budget Hearing & Business Meeting Agenda Notes April 7, 2025 
FY26 Proposed Budget  ** 
SC Warrant April 7, 2025 
SC Business Meeting Minutes March 17, 2025 
NHS Overnight Field Trip – Sailbot Robotics 
Policy JJH Student Overnight or Late Night Travel 
NEF Naming Rights Request – Bresnahan Classroom (Mrs. Jean Kirkpatrick)      ** 
Policy FF – Naming New Facilities 
CREST:   Letter to School Committee (1 pg)  ** 

  Proposed Amendments to Articles of Agreement (15 pgs)  ** 
  Articles of Agreement (14 pages)   ** 

MOU for NPS Instructional Assistants Association 
Policy BEDF – Voting Method (3 pgs)   ** 
Policy HB – Negotiations Legal Status 
Policy CBD – Superintendent’s Contract 
Director of Finance and Operations Profile 
Policy GCF: Professional Staff Hiring 
2025-2026 School Choice Proposed Openings 
School Choice Summaries (2023-24 and 2024-25) 
Policy JFBB – School Choice 
School Committee Meeting Schedule 2025-2026 – DRAFT 
Policy BE – School Committee Meetings 
Superintendent’s Report 



Newburyport Public Schools 
School Committee Business Meeting 

Sr./Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 

Monday, April 7, 2025     at 6:30PM 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89859619881?pwd=gnrv1SzPUatxB1if4SABQZtRavOajq.1 

 
Meeting ID: 898 5961 9881   /   Passcode: 116974 

--One tap mobile 
+16468769923,,89859619881#,,,,*116974# US (New York 

 
The Mission of the Newburyport Public Schools, the port where tradition and innovation converge, is to ensure each student achieves 
intellectual and personal excellence and is equipped for life experiences through a system distinguished by students, staff, and 
community who: - practice kindness and perseverance - celebrate each unique individual - value creativity; experiential, rigorous 
educational opportunities; scholarly pursuits; and life-long learning - provide the nurturing environments for emotional, social, and 
physical growth - understand and embrace their role as global citizens. 
 
Please note: The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all 
items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. The 
meeting will be televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 & streamed via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/. 
 
 

Public Budget Hearing Agenda 
1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. FY26 Budget Presentation - Superintendent Sean Gallagher and Michael Wood 
 
3. Public Comment (as it relates to the Budget Hearing Agenda) 
 
4. Adjourn 
 
 
School Committee Business Meeting Agenda 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. *Warrant 4/7/25 – possible Vote 
 
4. *Meeting Minutes 3/17/2025 – possible Vote 
 
5. *NHS Overnight Field Trip – Sailbot Robotics – possible Vote 
 
6. *Consideration and review of the NEF’s request to name a 2nd grade classroom at the Bresnahan in honor 

of Mrs. Jean Kirkpatrick – possible Vote 
 

7. *Amendment to CREST Articles of Agreement – possible Vote 
 
8. *Collective Bargaining Agreement between Instructional Assistants Union and Newburyport School 

Committee for period July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2028 – possible Vote 
 
9. *Superintendent Contract / Compensation – possible Vote 

 
10. *Finalist Recommendation - Director of Finance and Operations – possible Vote 

 
 

Continued – next page 
  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89859619881?pwd=gnrv1SzPUatxB1if4SABQZtRavOajq.1
https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/


April 7, 2025 
Page 2 

11. *2025-2026 School Choice Proposed Openings – possible Vote

12. School Committee Meeting Schedule 2025-2026 - DRAFT

13. Subcommittee Updates
a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan
b. Policy Subcommittee – Kathleen Shaw
c. Communications Subcommittee – Sarah Hall
d. Teaching & Learning Subcommittee – Breanna Higgins
e. Superintendent Evaluation Subcommittee – Mayor Sean Reardon

14. Superintendent’s Report

15. New Business

16. *Executive Session – Vote
for the purpose of discussing strategy related to non-union contract negotiations and will not 
reconvene in Open Session. 

Adjournment 

* Possible Vote 

** The School Committee reserves the right to call executive session, as provided under Chapter 30A, Section 21(a)(2), of the General 
Laws to discuss strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations, collective bargaining and/or potential litigation.  



Newburyport Public Schools 
 

School Committee Business Meeting  

Monday, April 7, 2025     at 6:30PM 
 

Sr./Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 

AGENDA NOTES 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89859619881?pwd=gnrv1SzPUatxB1if4SABQZtRavOajq.1 

 
Meeting ID: 898 5961 9881 

Passcode: 116974 
 

--One tap mobile 
+16468769923,,89859619881#,,,,*116974# US (New York 

 
The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in 
fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.  The meeting will be 
televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 or stream via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/.  
 
 

Public Budget Hearing Agenda 
2. FY26 Budget Presentation:  Superintendent Sean Gallagher and Michael Wood (Finance) will present 

an overview of the proposed FY26 budget. (see attached) 
 
3. Public Comment:  Opportunity for the public to ask questions as they relate to the Public Budget 

Hearing Agenda. 
 

4. Adjourn 
 
School Committee Business Meeting Agenda 
3. *Warrant 4/7/25 – possible Vote 
 
4. *Meeting Minutes 3/17/2025 – possible Vote 
 
5. *NHS Overnight Field Trip – Sailbot Robotics – possible Vote 
 In accordance with Policy JJH - Student Overnight or Late Night Travel, the high school’s Sailbot 

Robotics class is seeking the School Committee’s approval to attend the Sailbot Competition in 
Worcester, MA beginning June 8th through June 13th. (attached) 

 
6. *Consideration and review of the NEF’s request to name a 2nd grade classroom at the Bresnahan in honor 

of Mrs. Jean Kirkpatrick – possible Vote 
 In accordance with Policy FF – Naming New Facilities, the Newburyport Education Foundation 

and Institution for Savings are seeking the School Committee’s approval to name a 2nd grade 
classroom at the Francis T. Bresnahan Elementary School in honor of Mrs. Jean Kirkpatrick, a 
former longtime elementary school teacher. (attached) 

 
7. *Amendment to CREST Articles of Agreement – possible Vote 
  Newburyport is one of sixteen member districts of CREST Collaborative, which is a provider of 

special education services to students and districts. Once DESE and the CREST BOD have approved 
proposed amendments to the Articles of Agreement, DESE then requires the school committee of 
each CREST member district to vote on acceptance of the amendments. (see attached) 

 
  Suggested language for vote:  The School Committee of Newburyport Public Schools hereby 

approves the amendments to CREST’s Articles of Agreement as approved by CREST’s Board of 
Directors on March 12 and 26, 2025. 

 
 

Continued – next page 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89859619881?pwd=gnrv1SzPUatxB1if4SABQZtRavOajq.1
https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/


April 7, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 
8. *Collective Bargaining Agreement between Instructional Assistants Union and Newburyport School 

Committee for period July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2028 – possible Vote 
The Instructional Assistants Union voted to ratify the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for 
the period July 1, 2025 – June 20, 2028 on March 24, 2025.  The School Committee will discuss the 
agreement and vote to approve the MOU at this meeting, in accordance with Policy BEDF – Voting 
Method and HB – Negotiations Legal Status. (attached) 

 
9. *Superintendent Contract / Compensation – possible Vote 

Juliet Walker will discuss the superintendent’s contract in accordance with Policy CBD: 
Superintendent’s Contract. 

 
10. *Finalist Recommendation – Director of Finance and Operations – possible Vote 

The Advisory Committee created by the School Committee on February 3rd for the hiring process 
for the Director of Finance and Operations position, would like to move Ethan Manning forward as 
the recommended candidate for the position of Director of Finance and Operations, in accordance 
with Policy GCF – Professional Staff Hiring. (attached) 

 
11. *2025-2026 School Choice Proposed Openings – possible Vote 

Superintendent Sean Gallagher will review proposed school choice openings for 2025-2026.  The 
School Committee will confirm the district’s participation in school choice next year, as well as the 
number of students to be accepted in each grade, in accordance with Policy JFBB - School Choice. 
(attached) 

 
12. School Committee Meeting Schedule 2025-2026 – DRAFT 

The members will review a draft of the school committee meeting calendar for 2025-2026, which 
was created in accordance with Policy BE: School Committee Meetings. (attached) 

 
13. Subcommittee Updates 

a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan 
b. Policy Subcommittee – Kathleen Shaw 
c. Communications Subcommittee – Sarah Hall 
d. Teaching & Learning Subcommittee – Breanna Higgins 
e. Superintendent Evaluation Subcommittee – Mayor Sean Reardon 

 
14. Superintendent’s Report:  Playful Learning and NHS Portrait of a Graduate NEASC Presentation 
 
15. New Business 

 
16. *Executive Session – Vote 

for the purpose of discussing strategy related to non-union contract negotiations and will not 
reconvene in Open Session. 

 
Adjournment          *Possible Vote 

 
 
FYI: Upcoming Dates:    NHS International Cultural Fair: Wednesday, April 2 @ 6PM 

 NHS School Council meeting:  Wednesday, April 9 @ 5PM  
 National Art Honor Society Induction: Wednesday, April 9 @ 7pm 
 National Honor Society Induction: Thursday, April 10 @ 7PM 
 Nock School Council meeting:  Friday, April 11 @ 8:15AM 
 Policy Subcommittee meeting:  Monday, April 14 @ 7PM 
 Teaching & Learning Subcommittee: Tuesday, April 15 @ 6:30PM 
 Superintendent’s Advisory Council meeting:  Tuesday, April 15 @ 6:30PM 
 FINCOM meeting:  Thursday, April 17 @ tba 
 SEPAC meeting:  Thursday, April 17 @ 6PM 
 Early Release Day – Friday, April 18 

























































School 

Committee 

Warrant 

FY25-WARRANT 8146 

A-Warrants

April 7 , 2025 

Warrant 8146 

A-Warrant

$ 702,499.89 

$     9,428.21 

--------------------------------------------------------------------

Total of Warrant $   711,928.10 



1 | P a g e  

NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE BUSINESS MEETING 
Senior/Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 

 
Monday, March 17, 2025 

 
Present: Juliet Walker, Sarah Hall, Andy Boger; Breanna Higgins, Kathleen Shaw and Brian 

Callahan (Mayor Sean Reardon absent) 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
Vice Chair Juliet Walker called the School Committee Business meeting of the Newburyport School 
Committee to order at 6:30 PM.  Roll call found all members present except Mayor Reardon and 
Breanna Higgins (arrived at 6:31 PM).  All those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 
Public Comments 
Adriana Kostan, 17 Arlington Street (cell phones) 
 
Introduction of new Athletic Director 
Anna DeVitto was introduced as the new Athletic Director by Superintendent Sean Gallagher.  She 
will join the district in July.  Anna currently is the AD at Fontbonne Academy in Milton, MA. 
 
 
Warrant: 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Sarah Hall it was  
 VOTED: to approve the Warrant in the amount of $700,037.71 as presented. 
 
The Superintendent provided background on the 2016 wheelchair accessible van that the district 
wishes to purchase (Warrant 8145). 
 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
 
 
Minutes 
Motion: 
On a motion by Sarah Hall and seconded by Andrew Boger it was  

VOTED: to adopt the minutes from the March 3, 2025 School Committee meeting as 
presented. 

 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
Brian Callahan and Breanna Higgins Abstained 
 
Student Representative Report 
Logan MacKnight presented the student report that included Responsibility Month at the Bresnahan, 
the school-wide Arbor Tree poster contest at the Molin, college trips at the Nock, and the high 
school’s Slam Poetry team’s participation in the Spoken Word Competition in Boston. 
 



2 | P a g e  

Onsite Daycare Plan Update and Proposed Job Description 
HR Director Pam Kealey provided an update for plans to open an onsite daycare at the Bresnahan, 
including anticipated staffing needs, possible insurance needs and revenue sources.  She presented 
the proposed job description for a Daycare Director/Lead Pre-School Teacher position. Pam 
explained that upon the approval by the School Committee, the daycare plans can move forward and 
the position can be posted. 
 
Breanna Higgins suggested amending the job description to include experience as a daycare director 
and/or lead pre-school teacher. 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Sarah Hall it was  

VOTED: to approve the creation of a professional staff position of Daycare Director/Lead 
Pre-School Teacher, using the amended job description, for the purpose of 
starting a daycare program in accordance with Policy GCA – Professional Staff 
Positions. 

 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
 
Student Activity Account Request 
Principal Andy Wulf described the new Women in Sports Club at the high school. Juliet Walker 
explained that requests for new student activity accounts no longer need School Committee approval. 
 
Two NHS Overnight Field Trips 
Principal Andy Wulf provided background on the field trip to Washington, DC for the Real World 
Design National Competition in May 2025.  The NEF will sponsor the trip at a cost of $750 per 
person.   
 
Principal Wulf also described the Band/Orchestra/Chorus/Theatre overnight field trip to Disney in 
Orlando, Florida during the April 2026 spring vacation. Students would compete in an arts festival 
with other students from around the US. 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Sarah Hall and seconded by Breanna Higgins it was  

VOTED: to approve the Real World Design Challenge field trip to Washington, DC May 2 
thru May 4 in accordance with Policy JJH – Student Overnight or Late Night 
Travel. 

Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Breanna Higgins and seconded by Brian Callahan it was  

VOTED: to approve the NHS Performing Arts trip to Orlando in 2026 in accordance with 
Policy JJH – Student Overnight or Late Night Travel. 

 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 



3 | P a g e  

 
Revised FY26 Level of Service Budget 
Superintendent Sean Gallagher presented a revised LOS FY26 Budget, explaining that since the last 
meeting on March 3rd, the team was able to reduce the city appropriation from 7.25% to 4.12%.  The 
Superintendent thanked the district unions and negotiation teams for their hard work and collaborative 
efforts which has led to a clearer picture of future contractual obligations. 
 
In addition, the total overall budget increase went from 3.11% to 1.47%.  Superintendent Gallagher 
reviewed the list of funding changes since the March 3rd meeting, including Medicaid and Circuit 
Breaker reimbursements and school choice.  He also introduced a new chart that compares City 
Allocation budget increases from 2016 through 2025.  
 
 
High School Competency Determination Policy – 2nd read 
Breanna Higgins explained that the High School Competency Determination Policy was reviewed by 
the high school, the NHS School Council, Teaching & Learning Subcommittee and Policy 
Subcommittee, and there have been no changes. This would be an addendum to the current Policy 
IKF – Graduation Requirements. 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Breanna Higgins and seconded by Brian Callahan it was  

VOTED: to add the High School Competency Determination Policy as Policy IKF-R. 
 
Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

Finance Subcommittee 
Brian Callahan reported a meeting was held on March 13th.  The agenda included fundraising, review 
of financial statements and the CIP report, as well as planning for the upcoming Joint Budget meeting 
with City Council on Thursday (March 20th) at 4PM in the Nock library. 
 
Policy Subcommittee:  have not met 
 
Communications Subcommittee 
Sarah Hall stated this month’s meeting was cancelled due to the upcoming Joint Finance meeting. 
 
Teaching & Learning Subcommittee 
Breanna Higgins said a meeting was held on March 5th.  They discussed the School Council calendar 
and possible impact on the School Improvement Plan, as well as a mid-year data presentation and a 
targeted math professional development program at the Nock with Mark Littlefield. 
 
Superintendent’s Evaluation Subcommittee:  have not met 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  

Superintendent’s Report 
FY25 SOA Plan:  Superintendent Gallagher reported that the progress report will be completed by the 
April 1st deadline. 
 
2024-2025 Bus Transportation Update:  The current bus fees, ridership numbers and revenue for 
2023 through 2025 were reviewed by Superintendent Gallagher. 
 
School Choice Potential Seat Offerings:  Superintendent Gallagher provided potential seat projections 
for school choice in 2025-2026.  A full break down will be presented at the April 7th meeting.  
 
 
New Business 

• Kathleen Shaw reported that SEPAC met on February 27th, and will meet in-person on April 
17th.  They are creating a new awards committee to honor teachers. 

• Superintendent Gallagher reminded School Committee members that tonight’s packet 
contained a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) in the old reporting format for the committee’s 
use.  Juliet Walker would like to have a brief review of the CIP as part of the budget 
discussion at the April 7th meeting. 

• Kathleen Shaw extended an invitation to everyone to attend the IFTAR event on March 27th 
that is being sponsored by the Human Rights Commission. 

 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Andrew Boger it was 

VOTED: to adjourn the Business meeting of the Newburyport School Committee at 8:02PM 
and move to Executive Session for the purpose of discussing possible contract 
negotiations and/or legal matters, and will not reconvene in open session. 

Motion Passed 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
 

Roll Call Vote 

School Committee Member Vote 
Mayor Sean Reardon absent 
Sarah Hall Yes 
Andrew Boger Yes 
Brian Callahan Yes 
Breanna Higgins Yes 
Kathleen Shaw Yes 
Juliet Walker Yes 

 
 

 



Student Report for School Committee   March 17, 2025 

Submitted by: Logan MacKnight 
 
Location: Senior Center 
 
 
Bresnahan News: 
Kindergarten Collaboration 
We are excited to share a collaborative project between Mr. Brad Garleau’s media class, our 
kindergarten teachers, and students! Last week, we started creating a video designed to help new 
families gain a deeper understanding of how special Kindergarten is at the Bresnahan School. As 
most of our incoming kindergarteners have not attended preschool here, we hope this initiative 
will ease their transition into Newburyport Public Schools. This project will highlight "A Day in 
the Life of a Kindergartner," showcasing curriculum, age-appropriate tasks, and the ways we 
support social-emotional well-being for our youngest learners. Through this effort, families will 
get a glimpse into the engaging and nurturing environment we provide. It is sure to be an 
adorable and meaningful resource for our incoming families as they begin this exciting journey! 
We will share the final product when it's completed! 
 
Readathon! 
Today was the first day of our PTO sponsored “Clipper Readathon.” We are excited for an 
eventful two weeks with library campouts, book character parades and lots and lots of reading! 
Thank you to the PTO for making this happen. We have a number of parent volunteers coming in 
during the readathon. A huge thank you as well to the entire Bresnahan staff for making this such 
a special time for our students, and especially our Librarian Renee Ames for her vision in 
creating an inclusive camp out experience in the library that all students love. 
 
Responsibility at the Bresnahan, Community Service of Newburyport Toilet Paper Drive 
Our students had a wonderful assembly last week to kick off Responsibility month! The whole 
school is working towards getting “likes” for their responsible acts. Let's see how many we can 
get by the end of the month! Last month we did 1000 Acts of Kindness, can we get to 1000 acts 
of responsibility? We think so! 
 
Part of being responsible is being responsible for helping your community. Bresnahan students 
are partnering with Community Service of Newburyport on a toilet paper drive. We figured out 



that if everyone in the school brought in one roll of toilet paper, we would have over 700 rolls of 
toilet paper! If anyone listening would like to contribute, toilet paper rolls can be dropped off at 
the main office. 
 
 
 
 
Molin News:  
Congratulations to Sienna Burke for winning the school-wide Arbor Tree poster contest. Her 
poster will be  
entered into the state-wide competition. 
-The PTO-sponsored Readathon has begun. Please register your child for this event. 
-Thank you to the PTO for organizing Molin Music Bingo on Friday! 
-The Molin School play 101 Dalmatians Kids opens on Thursday at 6pm! There are over 100 
students participating and therefore, two casts! It runs all weekend. Friday at 6pm and Saturday 
at 2pm and 6pm.  
 
 
Nock News:  

A special thank you to the parents, faculty, and students who have joined the rosters for our 
March Madness Basketball Fundraiser and Community Event on Wednesday, March 26, at 6 
PM. We’re looking forward to another great night of school spirit and community engagement. 
Rosters are set!  

Additionally, our college trips are underway . Last week, our seventh graders visited Merrimack 
College, while sixth graders will head to Endicott College, and eighth graders will tour Suffolk 
University later this month. These visits are an exciting opportunity to expose our students to 
higher education as we continue to support the district’s Portrait of a Graduate mission. 
 
The Intergenerational Book Club is in its second year at the Nock.The book club got its start last 
year when Clipper Crew members came to Ms Groskin wanting to connect with seniors in our 
community. Eighth graders and members of the Senior Center meet to share their perspectives on 
an assigned book. Coordinated by 8th Grade Social Studies teacher Jennifer Groskin Spurling 
and Intergenerational Projects Senior Center Volunteer Liz Walsh, the group always has a lively 
discussion! 
 
 

High School News: 

The Slam Poetry team competed this weekend in the Spoken Word Competition in Boston. As 
always, the team represented Newburyport in the highest fashion. Kudos to Lila Coffey, Lucius 
Nelson, Rachel Kinney, and Nadia Toth. 

 





File:  JJH 

STUDENT OVERNIGHT OR LATE NIGHT TRAVEL 
 
All student trips which include late night or overnight travel must have prior approval of the 
School Committee. Initial approval by the School Committee is required before engaging 
students in fundraising activities. The School Committee will also consider the educational value 
of the trip in relation to the cost prior to granting initial approval. Overnight trips should offer 
significant educational benefits to students that clearly justify the time and expense of the trip. 
Such trips should be appropriate for the grade level. 
 
Final approval will not be granted until all preparations for the trip have been completed 
including, but not limited to, all logistical details involving transportation, accommodation 
arrangements and fundraising efforts. The School Committee requires that final approval be 
sought no less than 30 days prior to the scheduled trip dates. 
 
Teachers and other school staff are prohibited from soliciting for privately run trips through the 
school system and in the schools. The School Committee will only review for approval 
school-sanctioned trips. The School Committee will not review or approve trips that are privately 
organized and run without school sanctioning. 
 
 
LEGAL REFS.:   M.G.L. 69:1B; 71:37N 
 
CROSS REFS.: IJOA, Field Trips 
 
Adopted: June 19, 2017 
Revised: February 27, 2024 
 













FF - Naming New Facilities

Adoption Date: 11/06/2017

Revision History: 06/03/2024

Naming New Facilities

Naming a school facility is an important matter that deserves thoughtful attention.  Personal prejudice 
or favoritism, political pressure, or temporary popularity should not be an influence in choosing a 
name for a school, a portion of a school, or a portion of school grounds.  Whenever possible, the 
wishes of the community, including parents/guardians and students, should be considered in naming 
school facilities. 

The School Committee has the authority to approve the naming and renaming of buildings, structures, 
and facilities located on School District property. The School Committee also has the authority to 
name subsections of existing structures or facilities, such as classrooms, auditoriums, and 
gymnasiums.

Names and/or wording associated with school facilities shall be consistent with school district policies 
and promote messages aligned with the mission, vision and goals of the school district. To the extent 
possible, names and/or wording should be designed not to restrict the use of a space or inhibit 
changing the function of the space should that become necessary in the future. 

When the opportunity to name or dedicate a new school or school related property, structure or facility 
is forthcoming, an orderly procedure will be communicated at the next available School Committee 
meeting. The Committee's agendas should clearly reflect the intent to consider, review, and vote on 
naming opportunities. 

The School Committee may elect to authorize the designation of naming rights for specific portions of 
District facilities through advanced approval of a list of naming opportunities to be reviewed annually; 
provided such designation benefits the District and the Committee retains final approval over any 
name associated with School District structures or facilities.

An offer of a financial contribution to the School District may accompany a naming request, but the 
School Committee is not obligated to accept or reject a name based upon financial considerations 
alone.



















































































VOTINGMETHOD
Section B: School Committee Governance and Operations File: BEDF

Open Meeting

Votes of the School Committee will be taken by voice vote or a hand count and shall be recorded in the minutes. If the vote is
unanimous only that fact need be recorded. No vote taken at an open session shall be by secret ballot.

All actions will require a majority vote of all members present and voting except as state law, Robert's Rules of Order,
Newly Revised, or policies of this Committee require a larger majority. "Majority vote", when used in connection with a
meeting of a multiple member body shall mean a majority of those present and voting, unless another provision is made by
ordinance or by its own rules.

A majority of the members of the School Committee will constitute a quorum.

A two thirds vote will be required to suspend parliamentary rules of order.

Executive Session

A majority of the members of the School Committee must vote to enter into executive session, with the vote taken by roll call
and recorded in the official minutes.

All votes taken in executive session will be recorded roll call votes, and will become part of the minutes of executive sessions.
General Law provisions related to any vote to meet in "executive session" shall always require a majority of members of the
body.

Any votes taken to ratify employment contracts or collective bargaining agreements shall be taken in open session.

Remote Participation and Voting:

The CITY COUNCIL of the City of Newburyport hereby authorizes remote participation in meetings held by all City of
Newburyport public bodies subject to theOpenMeeting Law and pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10. For the purposes of this
order, remote participation shall be permitted under the following terms and conditions:

Media:
Telephone, internet, satellite enabled audio/video conferencing, or other similar technology may be used for remote
participation provided that the participant and all in attendance can hear each
other. If videoconferencing is used, the member participating remotely must be visible to all in attendance.

Quorum:
A quorum of the public body, including the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person authorized to chair the
meeting, must be physically present at the meeting location before anabsent member may participate remotely.

Votes:
If any member of the public body is participating remotely, all votes of the body, including those taken inopen
session, are required to be by roll call and the results of the rollmust be recorded in the minutes.



Status:
A member participating remotely may vote, and is not deemed to be absent from the meeting, includingforpurposes
ofMGLChapter39Section23D.
 
Reasons:  
Acceptable reasons for participating remotely include one or moreof the following:personal illness, personal
disability, emergency, and military service or geographic distance. A member cannot participate remotely for
convenience.

Notification:
A member who will not be present at a meeting must notify the chair as far in advance as possible. The chair must
announce at the beginning of the meeting the nameof the person participating remotely and the reason. The categories
listed above under Reasons may be used for this announcement such that a member's privacy rights are protected,
especially with respect to illness or disability.

Technical Issues:
Iftechnical issuesarisewith themedia connection, the chair mustdecide howto address them. Deliberations shall
besuspended while the difficulties are addressed. Ifthe remote member is disconnected during the meeting, the
minutes must reflect this fact.

Useof PlansandOther Visuals:
The chair or, inthe chair's absence, the person authorized to chair the meeting, shall distribute to remote participants, in
advance of the meeting, copies of all relevant documents, exhibits, and presentation materials used during the meeting. If
a member of the public body is remotely participating in a public hearing relative to the issuance of any permit involving a
site planor architectural drawings, that member must utilize video conferencing such that allmaps, plansor other
presentation materials used or referenced during the meeting are visible. This requirement for video conferencing isnot
necessarywhere themember hasalready receiveda copyofall relevantmaps, plans, or other presentation materials and no
newmaterials are introduced during the meeting.

ExecutiveSession:
There shall beno remoteparticipation inanyexecutive session including, butnot limited to, any vote to go into or out of
said executive session.
 

Actions Requiring Special Voting Treatment:

Contracts and Collective Bargaining: Any votes taken to ratify employment contracts or collective bargaining
agreements shall be taken in open session.

Policy Formulation and Adoption: Adoption of new policies, or modification of existing policies, shall be the sole
responsibility of the full School Committee. Policies will be adopted by affirmative vote of a majority of the School
Committee when such action has been scheduled on the agenda of a regular or special meeting. Except under
emergency conditions, proposed policies will be presented in two meetings, the first one of which is for information,
discussion and redrafting purposes. The second meeting for discussion, adoption or rejection.



Retirement of Facilities: While considering the criteria, The School Committee realizes that no school may be closed
and surrendered to the city without the affirmative vote of a majority of the school committee, and only after a
public hearing has been held, and the parents of the students involved have been notified by mail by the Office of
the Superintendent of Schools at least two weeks prior to the date of the public hearing of the proposed closing.

Sources:
Newburyport City Charter
MASC
LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 3 30A:18 25; 71:42; 71:50
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised

Version Control

Action Date 

First Reading 7/22/2016 

Second Reading 9/6/2016 

Adopted 9/6/2016 



 File:  HB 

 HB: NEGOTIATIONS LEGAL STATUS 

 All  negotiations  between  the  School  Committee  and  recognized  employee  groups  are  conducted 
 subject  to  Massachusetts  General  Laws.   The  legal  status  of  negotiations  is  defined  in  part  by 
 Sections 1 and 2 of that chapter, as follows: 

 “In  the  case  of  school  employees,  the  municipal  employer  shall  be  represented  by  the 
 school committee or its designated representative or representatives.” (Section 1) 

 "  shall  have  the  right  of  self-organization  and  the  right  to  form,  join,  or  assist  any  employee 
 organization  for  the  purpose  of  bargaining  collectively  through  representatives  of  their  own 
 choosing  on  questions  of  wages,  hours,  and  other  terms  and  conditions  of  employment,  and  to 
 engage  in  lawful,  concerted  activities  for  the  purpose  of  collective  bargaining  or  other  mutual  aid 
 or  protection,  free  from  interference,  restraint,  or  coercion.   An  employee  shall  have  the  right  to 
 refrain  from  any  or  all  of  such  activities,  except  to  the  extent  of  making  such  payment  of  service 
 fees to an exclusive representative as provided in section twelve." (Section 2) 

 Basic  to  all  employer/employee  negotiations  is  the  concept  of  "bargaining  in  good  faith."   It  is 
 the  legal  responsibility  of  both  the  School  Committee  and  employee  organizations  to  bargain  in 
 good  faith  as  they  conduct  negotiations.   However,  such  obligation  does  not  compel  either  party 
 to agree to a proposal or make a concession. 

 LEGAL REF.:   M.G.L. 150E:1 et seq. 

 Adopted: November 6, 2017 
 Revised: October 2, 2023 



 File  :  CBD 

 NEW POLICY 

 CBD: SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT 

 The  Committee,  upon  the  appointment  of  a  candidate  to  be  Superintendent,  will  enter  into  a 
 written  contract  with  the  Superintendent  which  will  meet  the  requirements  of  law  and  protect  the 
 rights  of  both  the  Committee  and  the  Superintendent.  In  accordance  with  said  contract  or,  in  the 
 absence  of  specific  contract  language,  by  vote  of  the  members,  the  Committee  may  choose  to 
 negotiate a successor contract with an incumbent Superintendent. 

 LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:41; 71:42 

 Adopted: May 15, 2023 



Ethan R. Manning 
 

Relevant Certifications / Licenses 

Bachelor of Science in Finance 

Certified Government Accountant (CGA) 

Certified MA Public Procurement Officer (MCPPO) 

Governmental Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 

MA Government Finance Officers Association 

NE States Government Finance Officers Association 

MA Municipal Auditors’ & Accountants’ Association (MMAAA) 

 

Experience 

Ethan has an extensive background that includes over 13 years working for the City 
of Newburyport, including over ten years as Finance Director/City Auditor, as well 
as Assistant City Auditor and Business Manager in the Department of Public 
Services. 

 

Previously to joining Newburyport, Ethan worked over five years at Bain Capital 
(Boston & London, UK).  As an analyst, he monitored $8.4 billion in assets.  He also 
worked as a London Operations & Trading Associate and as a Senior Portfolio 
Operations Associate.  Ethan began his career as a summery analyst for Liberty 
Mutual Insurance Group of New Hampshire. 

 

Ethan completed his Bachelor of Science in Finance, Magna Cum Laude, with 
minors in Government and Management at Bentley University in Waltham. He is a 
certified government accountant and a certified Massachusetts Public Procurement 
Officer. 

 



File: GCF 

GCF: PROFESSIONAL STAFF HIRING 
 
Through its employment policies, the District will strive to attract, secure, and hold the highest 
qualified personnel for all professional positions.  It is the responsibility of the Superintendent, 
and of persons to whom they delegate this responsibility, to determine the personnel needs of the 
school district and to locate suitable candidates.  No position may be created without the 
approval of the School Committee.  The District's goal is to employ and retain personnel who are 
motivated, will strive always to do their best, and are committed to providing the best 
educational environment for the children 
 
It will be the duty of the Superintendent to see that persons considered for employment in the 
schools meet all licensure requirements and the requirements of the Committee for the type of 
position in which they will serve. 
 
The following guidelines will be used in the selection of personnel: 
 

1. There will be no discrimination in the hiring process due to race*, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, disability, age, genetic information, active 
military/veteran status, marital status, familial status, pregnancy, or pregnancy-related 
condition, homelessness, ancestry, ethnic background, national origin, or any other 
category protected by state or federal law.. 

 
2. The quality of instruction is enhanced by a staff with a wide variation in background, 

educational preparation, and previous experience. 
 
3. The administrator responsible for the hiring of a staff member (in the case of 

District-wide positions, for the position of Principals, it is the Superintendent; for 
building-based personnel, it is the Principal) is directed to establish a representative 
screening committee.  The administrator has the final say in determining who will be 
hired but it is expected that the screening committee's input will be a factor in the 
decision. For those positions where the hiring authority rests with the School Committee, 
a representative screening committee may be established by the School Committee, or the 
School Committee may direct the Superintendent to establish a screening committee to 
assist the Superintendent in making their recommendation to the School Committee.  

 
*race to include traits historically associated with race, including, but not limited to, hair texture, 
hair type, hair length and protective hairstyles. 
 
LEGAL REFS.:   M.G.L. 69:6; 71:38; 71:38G; 71:39; 71:45 

603 CMR 7:00, 26.00, and 44:00 
Acts of 2022, Chapter 117 

 
Adopted: June 18, 2018 
Revised: October 2, 2023 



School Choice  ‐ 2025‐2026 Proposed Openings

SCHOOL GRADE

CHOICE
2025 ‐ 2026
PROPOSED
OPENINGS

Bresnahan pk ‐‐
K ‐‐

grade 1 5
grade 2 5
grade 3 5

Molin grade 4  5
grade 5 3

Nock grade 6 10
grade 7 10
grade 8 10

High  grade 9 20
grade 10 5
grade 11 ‐‐
grade 12 ‐‐

TOTAL: 78 slots



GRADE

MAX #
 SLOTS 

APPROVED

# 
APPLICATIONS 

RECEIVED ENROLLED

# Applicants
Withdrawn or
 did not enroll

Left on 
Waiting 

List

1 10 9 6 3

2 10 2 1 1

3 5 3 1 2

6 10 8 4 4

7 7 7 4 3

8 5 4 3 1

9 20 18 11 7

10 5 5 4 1

11 5 6 4 2
TOTALS: 77 62 38 24 0

SCHOOL CHOICE SUMMARY
2023 - 2024



GRADE

MAX # 
SLOTS 

APPROVED

# 
APPLICATIONS 

RECEIVED ENROLLED

# Applicants
Withdrawn or 
did not enroll

Left on 
Waiting

List

1 3 5 3 1 1

2 10 7 3 4

4 3 10 3 4 3

5 3 8 3 2 3

6 20 21 16 5

7 10 10 6 4

8 10 4 2 2

9 20 22 11 11

10 10 12 4 8

TOTALS: 89 99 51 41 7

(Note:  lotteries in grades 4 & 5)

SCHOOL CHOICE SUMMARY
2024 - 2025



 File:  JFBB 

SCHOOL CHOICE 
 
Non-resident students may attend the Newburyport Public Schools under the provisions of 
General Laws, Chapter 76, Section 12b, as amended and modified, and subject to regulations 
drawn up by the superintendent and approved by the school committee. If the School Committee 
will not be participating in the school choice program, then by law and no later than June 1, of 
each school year the Committee must hold a Public Hearing to review participation in the school 
choice program, and hold a vote to withdraw from the school choice program for the year 
beginning the following September. 

 
A. Cost of Tuition 

1. The cost of tuition for non-resident students will be borne by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts in accordance with the law. 

2. Funds received from the Commonwealth in payment of tuition for non-resident students 
will be deposited with the city treasurer in a separate account for the use of the school 
committee without further appropriation. 

 
B. Admissions 

1. The school committee will determine the number of non-resident students to be accepted 
on the basis of information provided by the superintendent.  The committee will make 
this determination after considering enrollment, staffing needs, and class size data. 

2. Information concerning the number of non-residents to be admitted will be published as 
the committee deems appropriate. 

3. The superintendent will determine the acceptance of Choice students conditional upon 
availability of seats. A wait list will be established and admissions from the wait list will 
be on a first come, first serve basis. 

4. Non-resident students currently enrolled shall continue to be enrolled. 

5. By law, siblings of non-resident students (existing choice) enrolled in the schools take 
precedence in admittance over other applicants. 

6. If a student moves and no longer lives in Newburyport but wishes to remain a student in 
the Newburyport Public Schools, a School Choice application must be completed and 
submitted to the superintendent.  The superintendent will determine the acceptance of 
Choice students conditional upon availability of seats. 

7. If there are more applicants than seat availability at a particular grade level, a lottery will 
be held to determine who will be accepted and the others will remain on a waitlist until 



future seats become available. Any sibling of a student already enrolled in the receiving 
district shall receive priority for admission to said district.  

8. Non-resident students admitted under this policy may maintain their enrollment until they 
graduate. 

9. The School Committee affirms its position that it shall not discriminate in the admission 
of any child on the basis of race*, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, 
disability, age, genetic  information, active military/veteran status, marital status, familial 
status, pregnancy, or pregnancy-related condition, homelessness, ancestry, ethnic 
background, national origin, or any other category protected by state or federal law, 
athletic performance, academic performance, or proficiency in the English language. 

 
*race to include traits historically associated with race, including, but not limited to, hair texture, 
hair type, hair length and protective hairstyles.      
 
C. Transportation 

The school committee will not provide transportation for non-resident students enrolled under 
this policy. 
 
LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:6; 71:6A; 76:6; 76:12; 76:12B 
 DESE 603 CMR 26.00 
 
CROSS REF.: JLCA, Physical Examination of Students 
 JLCB, Inoculations of Students 
 JFABD, Homeless Students: Enrollment Rights and Services 
 
Adopted: June 19, 2017 
Revised: February 27, 2024 
 



School Committee Business Meeting Schedule 
2025 - 2026 

1ST DRAFT 
NOTES: 
School Committee Business Meetings are generally held on the 1st and 3rd Mondays of each month at 6:30 PM, unless date conflicts with City 
Council, a holiday or school vacation week.  (By city Charter, SC meetings shall not meet on the same day as a regular City Council meeting, 
except in case of an emergency.)  Meetings are held at the Senior/Community Center, unless otherwise noted in the calendar. 
*Exceptions to the rule:  *Tuesday, September 2 due to Labor Day; Monday, September 22 due to conflict with CC, *Tuesday, January 20 due to 
MLK holiday, *Tuesday, February 24 and Tuesday, April 28 due to school vacation weeks. 
 

DATE TIME INFO  DATE TIME INFO 
August 4, 2025 

 conflicts w/City Council 

4:00 -  

8:00PM 

Summer Retreat 

NHS Library 

 

Monday, January 5, 2026 
6:30PM 

 

Inauguration  ?? 
at City Hall - Council Chambers   

OR   a Business Meeting? 

August 18, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  Tuesday, January 20, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

Tuesday, Sept. 2,  2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  February 2, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

September 22, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting 
 

 Tuesday, February 24, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 
 

October 6, 2025 

conflicts w/City Council 
6:30 PM Business Meeting  

March 2, 2026 
Public FY27 Preliminary Budget 

Presentations 
6:30 PM Business Meeting 

October 20, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  March 16, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

November 3, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  April 6, 2026 6:30 PM Public Hearing on Budget 
Business Meeting 

*tba     November date 

                6:30 PM 

Joint Meeting 
City Council & School Committee 

FY26 Budget 
(location = Senior/Community Center) 

 Tuesday, April 28, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

November 17, 2025 
Conflicts w/City Council 6:30 PM Business Meeting  May 4, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

December 1, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  May 18, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

December 15, 2025 6:30 PM Business Meeting  June 1, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

    June 15, 2026 6:30 PM Business Meeting 

* Meeting dates, times and/or locations may be changed, added or deleted throughout the year.     1st Draft 



File: BE 

 
UPDATED POLICY 

BE: SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
The School Committee will transact all business at official meetings of the Committee.  These 
may be either regular or special meetings, defined as follows:  
 

1. Regular meeting:  the usual official legal action meeting, held regularly 
2. Special meeting:  an official legal action meeting called between scheduled regular 

meetings to consider specific topics 
 
Every meeting of the School Committee, regular or special, will be open to the public unless an 
executive session is held in accordance with state law. 
 
Meetings  
 

a) The School Committee will meet on the first Monday of each month from August 
through June. The Committee will meet on the third Monday of the month, except in the 
month of July.  The Committee shall set a standard start time and location for these 
meetings during the first meeting of each new year. The Committee may, by a majority 
vote, and for good reason, change the date, place or time of the regular meeting. 
 

b) Special meetings will be scheduled when called by the Chairperson and/or their designee, 
requested by two or more members, or collectively agreed upon by a majority of the 
committee as the result of a discussion during a regular meeting or an executive session. 
The need for timeliness for such a meeting will be recognized when it’s scheduled. The 
notice of the special meeting shall state the reason for the meeting and shall be 
transmitted to each member and to the City Clerk at least two (2) business days, 
excluding weekends and holidays, prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

c) The Committee may, by a majority vote of those present, there being a quorum, adjourn 
any meeting to another date and time, and such meeting shall be deemed a continuation 
of the present meeting. The meeting shall be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least 
two (2) business days, excluding weekends and holidays, prior to the time of the meeting. 

 
d) The Committee may, by a majority vote, conduct a public hearing to ascertain public 

opinion on a subject that is before the Committee and shall, in any case, conduct a public 
hearing on the school budget in accordance with the law.  The Committee shall set the 
date, time, and place of such public hearing and shall establish rules for the conduct of 
such hearing. 
 

e) The Committee may meet from time to time for the purpose of receiving information and 
discussing matters pertaining to the educational program of the schools. Any such session 



shall be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least two (2) business days, excluding 
weekends and holidays, prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

f) Any duly-called meeting of the Committee may, for good and sufficient reason, be 
canceled or postponed by the Chairperson or the Vice-Chairperson. When the 
Chairperson or the Vice-Chairperson cancels or postpones a meeting, they shall inform 
the Superintendent, whose responsibility it shall be to notify the members. 

 
 
LEGAL REFS.:   M.G.L. 30A:18-25  
CROSS REFS.:   BEC, Executive Sessions;   

BEDA, Notification of School Committee Meetings 
 
Adopted: June 6, 2016 
Revised: May 15, 2023 

http://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/DocViewer.jsp?docid=37&z2collection=master
http://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/DocViewer.jsp?docid=38&z2collection=master


 

School Committee 
April 7, 2025 

Superintendent’s Report 

 

NPS Teachers Present at the New England Association of Schools & Colleges  

NEASC Conference Presenters:  A team of NHS teachers (Brendan Sturma, Dr. Erin 
Hobbs, Tim Mahan, and Dr. Abrams) were invited to present on Newburyport Public 
Schools “Portrait of a Graduate” work at the New England Association of Schools & 
Colleges conference.  They presented best practices, protocols and strategies that the 
Newburyport Public Schools have used to bring our POG to life. 

 

Playful Learning Institute Workshop:  A team of Newburyport Pk-3 teachers (2 from each 
grade level plus admin, EL, special education, and tech integration) attended a 2-day 
workshop in Lowell as a part of the Playful Learning Institute grant. Along with teachers 
from other districts, the group learned about playful pedagogy and started practicing 
some of the learning strategies. 

 


	4-7-2025 cover sheet AMENDED
	4-7-2025 agenda (1) AMENDED
	4-7-2025 agenda notes (2)
	FY26 Budget AMENDED 4_4_25
	Warrant cover page April 7
	Mar 17 2025 minutes FINAL
	Mar 17 2025 SC  minutes
	student report March 17

	Overnight field trip Sailbot
	JJH Student Overnight or Late Night Travel.docx
	STUDENT OVERNIGHT OR LATE NIGHT TRAVEL 

	NEF pages 1_2_3
	NEF pages 4_5
	Policy FF Naming New facilities
	CREST letter to SC highlighted 1pg
	CREST proposed amendments 15 pages
	CREST articles of agreement 14 pages
	MOU IA 2025 to 2028 signed
	BEDF-VOTING METHOD 3 pages removed blank
	HB Negotiations legal status
	Policy CBD Superintendent Contract
	Manning Ethan BIO
	GCF Professional Staff Hiring
	GCF: PROFESSIONAL STAFF HIRING 

	Choice Proposed Openings 2025-2026 April 7
	Choice summary 2023-2024
	Choice summary 2024-2025
	JFBB School Choice Policy
	SCHOOL CHOICE 

	SC Meeting Schedule 2025_2026 1st draft for April 7 meeting
	BE School Committee meetings
	BE: SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

	4_7_25 Supt Report
	Superintendent’s Report 
	NPS Teachers Present at the New England Association of Schools & Colleges  
	NEASC Conference Presenters:  A team of NHS teachers (Brendan Sturma, Dr. Erin Hobbs, Tim Mahan, and Dr. Abrams) were invited to present on Newburyport Public Schools “Portrait of a Graduate” work at the New England Association of Schools & Colleges conference.  They presented best practices, protocols and strategies that the Newburyport Public Schools have used to bring our POG to life. 



